IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 76,593
Fourth District Case No. 89-1467
Seventeenth Circuit Case No. 86-30259 CT

SEP 12 1990

SEP 12 1990

Deputy Clerk

GEORGE WILLIAMS, D.D.S.,

Petitioner,

vs.

FRED CAMPAGNULO a/k/a FRED CAMPO,

Respondents.

On review from the Fourth District Court of Appeal of Florida

PETITIONER'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

KVBICKI, DRAPER,
GALLAGHER & McGRANE, P.A.
Attorneys for PETITIONER
PH-City National Bank Building
25 West Flagler Street
Miami, Florida 33130-1712
(305) 374-1212

I N D E X

		PAGE NO.
TABLE OF	CITATIONS AND AUTHORITIES	ii, iii
JURISDICT	ION	1
STATEMENT	OF THE CASE AND FACTS	1-2
POINT INV	OLVED ON APPEAL	3

JURISDICTION

These proceedings are filed to review a decision of the District Court of Appeal, Fourth District in Fred Campagnulo a/k/a Fred Camp a/k/a Fred Campo v. George Williams, D.D.S. (A. 1-6). Jurisdiction vests in this Court pursuant to Article V, Section 3(b)(3), Florida Constitution, because the district court decision conflicts with Public Health Trust of Dade County v. Knuck, 495 So.2d 834 (Fla. 3d DCA 1986); Berry, D.D.S. v. Orr, 537 So.2d 1014 (Fla. 3d DCA 1989) Ingersoll v. Hoffman, D.D.S., 561 So.2d 324 (Fla. 3d DCA 1990).

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

The opinion of the Fourth District Court of Appeal states the following facts:

In November, 1986 appellant commenced an action in circuit court against appellee for dental malpractice. Appellant alleged that the malpractice occurred in December, 1984. Appellee moved to dismiss the complaint in January, 1987 on the grounds that the notice 768.57, requirement of Section Statutes (1985), applied to malpractice actions against dentists and had not been complied with by appellant. The trial court denied appellee's motion to dismiss in March, 1987.

^{1/} The abbreviation "A" stands for Appendix to Brief of Petitioner. In this brief, appellants will be referred to as Campagnulo or plaintiff.

George Williams, D.D.S. will be referred to as Williams, D.D.S. or defendant.

In April, 1989, prior to trial, appellee moved for summary judgment on the ground that appellant failed to comply with the prefiling notice requirements established by Section 768.57. Appellant's trial counsel stipulated that he did not serve notice of intent to file suit. In May, 1989 the trial court granted appellee final summary judgment finding that the appellant did not file notice of intent to file litigation and entered judgment in favor of appellee. [A. 2-3. Emphasis added]

Plaintiff never requested the proceedings be abated at the trial court level to allow amendment to the complaint; plaintiff stipulated that he never served notice of intent to file suit; and the statute of limitations run. Nevertheless, the Fourth District reversed the Final Judgment and remanded the case to the trial court with instructions to allow plaintiff to amend his complaint in order to compliance allege with Section $768.57(3)(a).^{2}$

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The present Fourth District decision conflicts with <u>Public</u>

<u>Health Trust v. Knuck</u>. <u>Knuck</u> stands for the principle that abatement in a medical malpractice action is not permissible when notice could not be filed within the limitations period. In the instant case, plaintiff did not serve the statutory notice throughout the entire trial court proceedings and did not request abatement until the pendency of the Fourth District appeal—

The Fourth District rejected appellant's constitutional challenge and his contention that the notice requirements of Section 768.57 do not apply to dentists.

well after the expiration of the statute of limitations. The Fourth District decision applied a rule of law to reach a different result than the Third District in Knuck although both cases involve substantially the same controlling facts.

The present Fourth District decision is also in conflict with the Third District decisions <u>Berry, D.D.S. v. Orr</u> and <u>Ingersoll v. Hoffman</u>. In both cases the Third District held that failure to give notice to a dentist under Section 768.57 deprives the court of jurisdiction. The Fourth District case conflicts with the Third District case because on substantially similar facts the Fourth District reinstated the dental malpractice action and instructed the trial court to allow plaintiff to amend his complaint to allege compliance (even though the Fourth District decision notes that no statutory notice was ever given).

ARGUMENT

The instant decisions directly and expressly conflict with the decisions of <u>Public Health</u> <u>Trust of Dade County v. Knuck</u>, <u>Berry, D.D.S. v. Orr; Inqersoll v. Hoffman</u>.

A. PRINCIPLES OF CONFLICT JURISDICTION

The jurisdiction of the Supreme Court of Florida to review decisions of the District Courts of Appeal because of direct conflict is designed to lend stability to the law by resolving embarrassing conflicts between decisions, and is generally invoked where a District Court of Appeal: (a) announces a rule of law which conflicts with a rule previously announced by the

Supreme Court or a District Court of Appeal; or (b) applies a rule of law to produce a different result in a case which involved substantially the same controlling facts as a prior case disposed of by either the Supreme Court or another District Court of Appeal. Article V, Section 3, Florida Constitution; Belcher v. Belcher, 271 So.2d 7 (Fla. 1972); Kincaid v. World Insurance Company, 157 So.2d 517 (Fla. 1963); Neilsen v. City of Sarasota, 1176 So.2d 231 (Fla. 1960).

In addition, misapplication of law is a recognized ground for the exercise of direct conflict jurisdiction. district court expressly relies on a prior decision controlling precedent, although the facts of the case being reviewed vary materially from those of the case relied on, such reliance creates a misapplication of law which vests conflict certiorari jurisdiction in the Supreme Court to resolve the conflict and harmonize the decision law of Florida. Shores Sales Co. v. City of North Miami Beach, 363 So.2d 321 1978); Lubell v. Roman Spa, Inc., 362 So.2d 922 (Fla. 1978); St. Louis & San Francisco Railroad Co. v. Wilson, 338 So.2d 192, 193 (Fla. 1976); Wale v. Barnes, 278 So.2d 601, 604 (Fla. 1973); Spivey v. Battaglia, 258 So.2d 815, 816 (Fla. 1972). It is also established that direct conflict exists when a decision relies on an earlier decision attributing thereto an erroneous principle of law beyond its holding. E.g., Wood v. 284 So.2d 691 (Fla. 1973); and Pinkerton-Hays Lumber Camp, Company v. Pope, 127 So.2d 441 (Fla. 1961).

B. CONFLICT WITH PUBLIC HEALTH TRUST OF DADE COUNTY V. KNUCK

In the present case, the Fourth District applied a rule of law to produce a different result than the Third District decision in Knuck although both cases involve substantially the same controlling facts. In Knuck, as in this case, defendant, moved to dismiss the complaint because plaintiff failed to serve the requisite notice of intent to initiate medical malpractice litigation required by Section 768.57. In Knuck, the trial court granted an ore tenus motion to abate the action to enable plaintiff to comply with Section 768.57. On appeal the Third District held that "[b]ecause the statute of limitations expired before ... [plaintiff] could satisfy the conditions precedent to filing suit against [defendants] , ... we hold that the trial court erred in abating the action ... Id at 837. The Third District expressly rejected plaintiffs argument that the filing of the complaint tolled the statute of limitations notwithstanding her noncompliance with statutory prerequisites. Id at 836.

The decision of the Fourth District, in the present case, correctly notes that <u>Knuck</u> stands for the proposition that abatement is not permissible when notice <u>could</u> not <u>be</u> <u>filed</u> within the limitations period. The Fourth District then adds:

In the instant case, notice could have been filed within the limitations period, but for the fact that the motion to dismiss was not heard until after the period of limitations had run.

In this sentence, the Fourth District seemed to be stating that if the hearing on the motion to dismiss had been held sooner, the plaintiff could have cured the defect within the statute of limitations. However, as the opinion expressly states, no statutory notice was ever given, and the statute of limitations has clearly run. No motion to abate was ever filed before the expiration of the statute of limitations. Therefore, the Fourth District Campagnulo decision is in direct conflict with Knuck where on substantially identical facts the Third District prohibited the bringing of the action.

C. <u>CONFLICT WITH BERRY, D.D.S. V. ORR AND INGERSOLL V.</u> HOFFMAN, D.D.S.

The unqualified rule of the Third District is that failure to give notice to a dentist under Section 768.57 deprives the court of jurisdiction.⁴ Berry, D.D.S. v. Orr, 537 So.2d 1014 (Fla. 3d DCA 1988); Ingersoll v. Hoffman, D.D.S., 561 So.2d 324

³/ Additionally, as the opinion notes, the underlying complaint was filed in November, 1986, one month before the expiration of the statute of limitations. As the decision further notes, the motion to dismiss was filed in January, 1987-one month after the statute of limitations had expired. Therefore, even if the court would have entertained the motion the day it was filed, the statute of limitations would have already expired.

⁴/ Both the Second and Third Districts have certified the issue of whether failure to comply with the prelitigation notice requirements of Section 768.57 deprive the trial court of subject matter jurisdiction of a dental malpractice action, or may the lack of notice be excused by a showing of Estoppel and Waiver. Ingersoll v. Hoffman, supra; Solimando v. International Medical Centers, 544 So.2d 1031 (Fla. 2d DCA 1989); Bendeck v. Berry, 546 So.2d 14 (Fla. 3d DCA 1989).

(Fla. 3d DCA 1990) (wherein the Third District stated: "Because this court has held that the notice requirement of Section 768.57 is jurisdictional, failure to provide adequate notice shall result in dismissal").

In <u>Berry</u>, <u>D.D.S. v. Orr</u>, the Third District directed the trial court to dismiss plaintiffs' dental malpractice action where plaintiffs failed to comply with the statutory notice requirement <u>prior</u> to filing the dental malpractice action. The court held that the court lacked jurisdiction to entertain the action where plaintiffs' failed to comply with the notice requirement of Section 768.57, Florida Statutes. The <u>Berry</u> decision directly and expressly conflicts with the present case; on substantially similar facts the Fourth District reinstated the dental malpractice action and instructed the trial court to allow plaintiff to amend his complaint to allege compliance (even though the Fourth District decision notes that no statutory notice had ever been given).

The decision of the Fourth District is in direct conflict with <u>Knuck</u> for another reason. In allowing plaintiff to amend its complaint after the statute of limitations has run because the malpractice complaint itself was timely filed, 5 the opinion conflicts with the following announced rule of law in <u>Knuck</u>;

⁵/ The present Fourth District decision erroneously relied on <u>Angrand v. Fox, D.O.</u>, 552 So.2d 1113 n.7 (Fla. 3d DCA 1989) which allowed plaintiff to abate the action where plaintiff prematurely filed suit but, unlike the present case, had given timely statutory notice under Section 768.57.

[W]e are compelled to reject [plaintiff's] ... argument that the filing of her complained tolled the statute of limitations notwithstanding her noncompliance with statutory prerequisites.

This court should exercise its discretionary jurisdiction to resolve these conflicts.

D. SUPPORT FOR EXERCISE OF DISCRETION IN CONFLICT IS FOUND

If this court finds it has jurisdiction, then this court should exercise its discretion in favor of entertaining this case on the merits. By entertaining the case on the merits, this court could work to resolve the embarrassing conflicts which have arisen among the districts on the issues of whether failure to file the notice of intent is jurisdictional and whether the case can be abated to allow compliance even after the statute of limitations has run. The instant decision of the Fourth District serves to further compound the confusion in the law by allowing amendment when the statute of limitations had clearly run before the summary judgment motion was filed and heard and the notice requirements had not been met. A decision by this court on the merits of the instant case would be of assistance to litigants, trial courts and the district courts in clarifying the principles of law governing failures to comply with the pre-suit notice requirement in Section 768.57.

CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing, it is submitted that the Fourth District's decision directly and expressly conflict with earlier

decisions of the Third District Court of Appeal. The conflicts are serious ones.

This Court is respectfully requested to exercise its jurisdiction to address the merits of the decision.