16593



IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

NOV 19 1990

4th DCA Case No: 89-01467

17th Circuit Court Case No: 86-30259 CTE

GEORGE WILLIAMS, D.D.S.,

Petitioner,

vs.

FRED CAMPAGNULO a/k/a FRED CAMP a/k/a FRED CAMPO,

Respondents.

RESPONDENT'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

THOMAS D. LARDIN, P.A.
Attorney for Respondents
1901 W. Cypress Creek Road, #100
Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33309
(305) 938-44067

By:

THOMAS D. LARDIN

Florida Bar No. 230146

JURISDICTION

Petitioner has filed this Petition for review taking the position that there is conflict between the District Courts of Appeal. It is Respondent's position that the conflict, if any, is inherent in the Third District Court of Appeal and does not involve the decision in the instant case. As such, jurisdiction is not vested pursuant to Article 5, Section 3(b)3, Florida Constitution.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND STATEMENT AND FACTS

Respondent would basically adopt the Statement of the Case and Facts as set forth by Petitioner with brief exceptions.

Those exceptions are set forth below.

The Motion to Dismiss filed by Petitioner for failure to follow the Pre-suit Screening Notice Requirement was denied by Order entered March 30, 1987 and Petitioner filed an Answer thereafter on April 3, 1987. Petitioner did not allege non compliance with the Pre-Suit Screening Statute as an affirmative defense and, as such, the concept of waiver and estoppel has application in this case.

Petitioner asserts that Respondent did not request an abatement at the trial level. The reason is clear. The Motion to Dismiss premised on non compliance with the Pre-Suit Screening Requirement was denied on March 30, 1987, and there was no reason for an abatement or a request for abatement.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The real alleged inconsistency or conflict between our case and Public Health Trust of Dade County v. Knuck, 495 So2d 834 (Fla 3rd DCA 1986), Berry vs. Orr 537 So2 1014 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1989), and Ingersoll v. Hoffman, 561 So2d 324 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1990) concerns whether or not the failure to allege compliance with or the failure to comply with the Pre-Suit Screening Requirements of Florida Statute 768.67 deprives the trial court of subject matter jurisdiction. The Fourth DCA has ruled that the Trial Court does have subject matter jurisdiction in Lindberg v. Hospital Corporation of America 545 So2d 1384 (Fla. 4DCA 1989) and in our The Third DCA has ruled that the Trial Court does not have subject matter jurisdiction in Knuck, Orr and Ingersoll. Third DCA has also ruled that the Trial Court does have subject matters jurisdiction in Angrand v. Fox 552 So2d 1113 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1989). As such, the conflict, if any, on this issue is one inherent in the Third District Court of Appeal as opposed to between the Third District Court of Appeal and the Fourth District Court of Appeal.

In any event, the issue has been certified to this Court by the Third District Court of Appeal in <u>Ingersoll</u>. The issue concerning whether the trial court does or does not have subject matter jurisdiction when compliance with Florida Statute 768.67 has either not occurred or has not been alleged can be resolved by this Court on the basis of the questions certified in the

<u>Ingersoll</u> case. It is therefore not a question of conflict with our case but rather that inherent Third District Court of Appeal conflict which this Court should and can decide through the questions certified in <u>Ingersoll</u>.

ARGUMENT

The concept of certiorari jurisdiction on the basis of conflict between the District Courts of Appeal is to harmonize the law of the State of Florida on a particular issue of law. There appears to be some conflict between the Third District Court of Appeal on the issue of subject matter jurisdiction but the battle line is between the Third District Court of Appeal in Angrand which is consistent with the Fourth District Court of Appeal in Lindberg versus the decision in the Knuck, Orr and Ingersoll cases.

The resolution of this issue of subject matter jurisdiction is already before this Court through the certification of that question in the Ingersol1 case. A decision in the Ingersol1 case will resolve that issue of disharmony which exists in the Third District Court of Appeal. It will also enlighten all of the District Courts concerning the correct determination of that issue. As the conflict exists within the Third District Court of Appeal and not between the District Courts, there is no basis for conflict jurisdiction in our particular case.

CONCLUSION

In conclusion, the conflict, if any, appears to be within the Third District Court of Appeal and not a conflict between the District Courts of Appeal and does not concern the decision announced in our case. There is no reason for acceptance of conflict certiorari jurisdiction in this case therefore as the conflict of law, if any, can be decided by a decision involving the questions certified by the Third District of Appeal in Ingersoll.